ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


1. 	 The Circuit Court of Calhoun county erred in dismissing Petitioner's claim as it was 
not ripe for adjudication until the Department of Motor Vehicles proceedings 
commenced, thus creating a lack ofsubject matter jurisdiction for any West Virginia 
Court until March 18, 2016. 

II. 	 The Circuit Court of Calhoun County erred in dismissing Petitioner's claim for 
malicious prosecution claiming it was barred by the statute of limitations, on the basis 
of the Dunn v. Rockwell analysis, failing to consider Petitioner's claim relied upon 
Defendant's instigation of DMV administrative action based upon false statements, 
and ruled Petitioner's statute of limitations began to accrue on January 19, 2012, the 
date he entered a no-contest plea in a corresponding criminal action instead of March 
18, 2016, the date the DMV administrative action was resolved in favor of the 
Petitioner. 

III. 	 The Circuit Court of Calhoun County erred in failing to apply the continuous tort 
doctrine to toll the two-year statute oflimitations, despite Chief Walker's intentional 
failure to appear and testify when subpoenaed three times, including a failure to 
appear after a subpoena brought by the West Virginia Department of Motor Vehicles, 
and other intentional acts, and thus dismissing Petitioner's claim for Intentional 
Infliction ofEmotional Distress. 

IV. 	 The Circuit Court of Calhoun County erred in failing to toll the statute of limitations, 
despite The Town of Grantsville's failure to discipline Mr. Walker for wrongful 
employment acts, such as falsifying required government reports and failing to appear 
after being subpoenaed, which constituted sufficient acts to toll the statute of 
limitations under the continuous tort doctrine, such that Petitioner's claim for 
Negligent Employment was not brought outside the statute oflimitations. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Defendant Grantsville ("Grantsville") employed and supervised Defendant Walker 

("Walker"), who was Chief of the Grantsville Town Police Department. (Compl.lr 5; and 6 R.6). 

On December 9, 2011 at approximately 10:00 p.m. Petitioner was pulled over by Chief Walker 

while driving to his home. (Compl. lr 8; R.6). Chief Walker asked Mr. Richards to exit the 

vehicle and perform a field sobriety test. (Compl. lr 11; R.6). Mr. Richards is severely disabled 
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in accordance with the Social Security Act and has been since October 16, 2003. 1 (Compl.Jr 16; 

R.7). Mr. Richards' severe disability is due to chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, obesity, 

diabetes mellitus, hypertension, degenerative disc disease, tremors, and depression. (Compl. Jr 

17; R.7). Mr. Richards was unable to complete a field sobriety test due to his disability and pain. 

(Compl. Jr 20 and 21; R.7). A valid intoximeter result was never obtained from 

(Petitioner.Compl. Jr 38-45; R.8-9). Defendant Walker proceeded to submit a false criminal 

complaint, citation, and sworn statement to the Calhoun County Magistrate Court. (Compl. Jr 48

51 ;R.9-1O). 

Mr. Richards retained attorney Loren B. Howley, Esq. to represent him regarding the 

criminal charges. (Compl.Jr 54;R.ll). On or about May 17, 2012, the West Virginia DMV 

received a West Virginia DUI Information sheet from Chief Walker regarding Mr. Richards, as 

required by §17C-5Al which requires, "any law-enforcement officer investigating a person for 

an offense described in section two article five of this chapter ... shall report to the Commissioner 

of the Division of Motor Vehicles by written statement within forty-eight hours of the conclusion 

of the investigation the name and address of the person believed to have committed the offense." 

The delayed timing of the report is not at issue in the case at hand. The West Virginia DUI 

Information Sheet was substantially different than the information submitted to the Calhoun 

County Magistrate Court. (Compl. Jr 57-60;R.12). On or about June 16, 2012, Mr. Richards 

received notice of his driver's license revocation, and ability to appeal said Order of Revocation. 

(Compl.Jr 63; 13). Petitioner retained Attorney Howley to handle the DMV matter. Mr. Richards 

went on to receive at least one more notice that his license was being revoked, despite him 

properly notifying the DMV he wanted a hearing to suspend the revocation. (Compl.Jr65 and 

I Petitioner's complaint contained a typo regarding the year of disability. Petitioner will provide documentation as 
to such date if requested and subject to a proper protective order. This fact is non-material to Defendants' Motion to 
Dismiss. 
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71;13-14). Petitioner had a hearing on October 24, 2012 regarding his driver's license 

suspension. 

Despite being subpoenaed to attend, Chief Walker intentionally did not appear at the 

DMV administrative hearing on October 24, 2012. (Compl.Jr 66-68;R.l4). Defendant Walker 

went on to intentionally not appear at two other hearings, despite subpoenas being issued and a 

petition being filed to enforce the subpoenas. (Compl.Jr 73,74,77-82; R.l4-15). Each time 

Walker missed a hearing he intentionally delayed resolution of Mr. Richard's license issue. 

Richards was forced to incur more attorney's fees and damages defending himself against 

Walker's false statements. On March 18,2016, Robert L. DeLong, hearing examiner entered an 

Order reversing the Commissioner's Order of Revocation entered on June 12, 2012. (Compl.Jr 

83; R.15). Mr. DeLong concluded that "insufficient evidence was presented to prove, by a 

preponderance of the evidence standard, that the Petitioner committed an offense described in 

West Virginia Code § 17C-5-2 by operating a motor vehicle in this State while under the 

influence of alcohol, controlled substances, or drugs on December 9, 2011." (Compl. Jr 84;R.15). 

Essentially, Walker intentionally submitted false information to the West Virginia DMV, 

forcing Plaintiff to incur substantial costs in defending multiple actions, including a driver's 

license revocation action before the West Virginia DMV, and suffered from severe indignity, 

embarrassment, humiliation, annoyance and inconvenience, emotional distress, and mental 

anguish. During this time Defendant Grantsville, failed to properly train, discipline, investigate, 

or terminate Walker, allowing him to continue acting as a police officer where he endangered the 

rights of the public, specifically and continually harming the Plaintiff from May of 2012 until 

March of2016. 
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On March 18, 2016, Richards filed a detailed Complaint outlining the facts and 

allegations against the Defendants to allow the Court to draw the inference that the defendants 

are liable for the misconduct alleged. Defendant filed a motion to dismiss on January 11, 2017. 

The Circuit Court granted the Defendant's motion to dismiss on May 31, 2017. Petitioner 

Richards timely appealed, and respectfully requests the Court to consider the points and 

authorities in this brief. 

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The Circuit Court erred in dismissing Petitioner's claims citing they were barred by the 

statute of limitations. The trial court, in appraising the sufficiency of a complaint on a Rule 

12(b)(6) motion, should not dismiss the complaint unless it appears beyond a reasonable doubt 

that plaintiff can prove no set of facts in support of his claim which would entitle him to relief. 

Chapman v. Kane Transfer Company, 160, W.Va. 530 S.E.2d 207, (1977). A rule for testing the 

sufficiency of a complaint when challenged by a motion to dismiss for failure to state a claim in 

which relief can be granted has been defined by the United States Supreme Court as, "in 

appraising the sufficiency of a complaint we follow, ofcourse, the accepted rule that a complaint 

should not be dismissed for failure to state a claim unless it appears beyond doubt that the 

plaintiff can prove no set of facts in support of his claim which would entitle him to relief." 

Conley v. Gibson, 355 U.S. 41, 45-46 (1957). Further the courts have held that, "A motion to 

dismiss for failure to state a claim is viewed with disfavor ..." Poe v. Pittman, 150 W.Va. 179, 

144 S.E.2d 671 (1965). The Supreme Court explained the "singlular purpose of a motion under 

subdivsion 12(b)(6) is to seek a determination whether the plaintiff is entitled to offer evidence 

to support the claims made in the complaint." Dimon v. Mansy, 198 W.Va. 40, 479 S.E.2d, 

(1996). 
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The Circuit Court of Calhoun County's Order of Dismissal relied upon a flawed application 

of subject matter jurisdiction. Mr. Richard's suit would not have subject matter jurisdiction in 

any court in the state of West Virginia until March 18, 2016 when the Department of Motor 

Vehicles ("DMV") issued an order dismissing his license revocation, thus ending the 

proceedings that had been ongoing. His claim was not ripe for adjudication until the DMV 

proceedings commenced. This Court recently held in State ex rei. Universal Underwriters Inc. 

Co. v. Wilson, ,801 S.E.2d 216, (2017), "a claim is not ripe for adjudication if it rests upon 

contingent future events that may not occur as anticipated, or indeed may not occur at all." 

Underwriters (quoting Texas v. United States, 523 U.S. 296, 300, 118 S.Ct. 1257, 140 L.Ed.2d, 

406 (1998)). The court further explained, "subject matter jurisdiction does not exist over claims 

that are not ripe for adjudication." Underwriters at 225. It is well established, that subject 

matter jurisdiction can be raised at any time, and the Court has explained, "This Court, on its 

own motion, will take notice of lack of jurisdiction at any time or any stage of the litigation 

pending therein." In re Bogg's Estate, 135 W.Va. 288, 63 S.E. 2d 497 (1951). Therefore, the 

court erred when it dismissed an action based upon a time barred statute of limitations, as 

Richards could not have filed his suit until well within the required statutory time limit. As this 

court has previously held, "any decree made by a court lacking jurisdiction is void." State ex el. 

Term Net. Merch. Servs. Inc. v. Jordan, 217 W.Va. 696, 700, 619 S.E.2d 209, 213 (2015). 

Therefore, Richards could not have filed suit until after March 18, 2016, as his claim was not 

ripe for adjudication. 

The Circuit Court of Calhoun County's dismissal order adheres to a flawed application of the 

Dunn v. Rockwell 689 S.E.2d 255 (W.Va. 2009) analysis. The circuit court failed to consider 

that Appellant Richard's claim relied upon Appellee Andrews' instigation of a DMV 
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administrative action that was based upon false statements, and instead ruled that Appellant's 

statute of limitations began to accrue on January 19, 2012, the date he entered a non-contest plea 

in a corresponding criminal action instead of March 18,2016, the date the OMV administrative 

action was resolved in favor of Appellant and Appellant's civil claim accrued. West Virginia 

law recognizes malicious prosecution claims that arise out of civil actions, and a statute of 

limitations only begins to run once all of the elements of a claim have been established. 

Appellant was subject to civil or administrative prosecution by the West Virginia 

Department of Motor Vehicles for allegedly driving under the influence. Such action was set in 

motion by Andrew Walker reporting false information to the Department of Motor Vehicles. On 

March 18, 2016, the action against Mr. Richards was resolved in his favor, where Hearing 

Examiner Robert J. DeLong held that, "insufficient evidence was presented to prove, by a 

preponderance of the evidence standard, that the Petitioner committed an offense as described in 

the West Virginia Code § 17C-5-2 by operating a motor vehicle in this State while under the 

influence of alcohol, controlled substances, or drugs on December 9, 2011." 

The Court, in applying the Dunn analysis to Appellant's claim, considered the claim as an 

attempt to hold Officer Walker liable for the prosecution of his criminal claim, despite no such 

claim being set forth in Richard's complaint. Richard's claim for malicious prosecution alleged, 

"Chief Walker intentionally and maliciously initiated an administrative civil action against Mr. 

Richards through. submission of a false West Virginia OUI Information Sheet." Richards did 

not rely upon any criminal prosecution as a source of his claim. The Court failed to apply the 

Dunn analysis to Richard's claim for the civil or administrative prosecution before the West 

Virginia DMV. The Court inaccurately determined that Richard's claim accrued on January 19, 

2012, despite Richard's action before the DMV not resolving until March 18, 2016. 
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Chief Walker's intentional failure to appear and testify when subpoenaed three times 

constitutes sufficient acts to toll the statute of limitations under the continuous tort doctrine, such 

that Richard's claim for Intentional Inflection of Emotional Distress was not brought outside the 

statute of limitations. West Virginia law recognizes that the statute of limitations for an action 

can be tolled under the continuous tort doctrine until the date of the last act of wrongful conduct. 

Here, Andrews intentionally submitted false facts to the West Virginia DMV, setting forth 

prosecution against Richards. Mr. Walker intentionally did not appear when called to testify to 

answer for the false information he submitted, and the Circuit Court determined that these 

actions did not constitute a continuing act of wrongful conduct, and further failed to consider that 

a jury should consider when the final act of wrongful conduct occurred. 

The Town of Grantsville's failure to discipline Mr. Walker for wrongful employment 

acts, such as falsifying required government reports and failing to appear after being subpoenaed, 

constitutes sufficient acts to toll the statute of limitations under the continuous tort doctrine. 

Therefore, Appellant's claim for Negligent Employment was not brought outside the statute of 

limitations. The Town ofGrantsville employed and supervised Walker, while he failed to appear 

to testify on three separate occasions, and submitted false documentation to the West Virginia 

Department of Motor Vehicles. However, they did not discipline Walker for his failure to 

respond to a subpoena, and for intentionally submitting a false report to the Department of Motor 

Vehicles. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Dennis Richards, Petitioner, requests oral argument in this matter as he believes it to be 

proper under Rule 19 of the West Virginia Rules of Appellate Procedure in that this case 

involves (1) assignment of error in the application of settled law; (2) an unsustainable exercise of 
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discretion where the law governing the discretion is well-settled; (3) a result against the weight 

of the evidence, and (4) a narrow issue oflaw. 

STANDARD OF REVIEW 

This case presents a question oflaw; therefore, this court must review the Circuit Court's 

granting of a Rule 12(b)( 6) motion to dismiss for failure to state a claim upon which relief can be 

granted de novo. State ex reI. McGraw v. Scott Runyan Pontiac-Buick, Inc., 194 W.Va. 770,461 

S.E.2d 516 (1995). 

ARGUMENT 

I. 	 PETITIONER'S CLAIM WAS NOT RIPE FOR ADJUDICATION UNTIL 
THE DMV PROCEEDINGS COMMENCED, THUS CREATING A LACK OF 
SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION FOR ANY WEST VIRGINIA COURT 
UNTIL MARCH 18,2017. 

Mr. Richards was not able to file a claim until March 18,2017, as his claim was not ripe for 

adjudication until the Department of Motor Vehicles proceedings commenced. In order to 

maintain an action under West Virginia law for malicious prosecution a Plaintiff must allege (1) 

that the prosecution was malicious; (2) that it was without reasonbable or probable cause; and (3) 

that it terminated favorably for the plaintiff. McCammon v. Oldaker, 516 S.E.2d 38 

(1999)(quoting Syl. Pt. 1, Lyons v. Davy-Pocahontas Coal Co., 84 S.E. 744 (1915)). This Court 

recently held in State ex reI. Universal Underwriters Inc. Co. v. Wilson, ,801 S.E.2d 216, (2017), 

"a claim is not ripe for adjudication if it rests upon contingent future events that may not occur as 

anticipated, or indeed may not occur at all." Underwriters (quoting Texas v. United States, 523 

U.S. 296, 300, 118 S.Ct. 1257, 140 L.Ed.2d, 406 (1998)). Further, as the Court recognized in 

State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Co. v. Schatken, 230 W.Va. 201, 737 S.E.2d 229 

(2012), "courts will not adjudicate rights which are merely contingent or dependent on 

contingent events, as distinguished from actual controversies." Also, the Court held in Zaleski v. 
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West Virginia Mut. Ins. Co., 224 W.Va. 544, 552, 687 S.E.2d 123, 131 (2009), "a matter must be 

ripe for consideration before the court may review it." As such, Mr. Richards' DMV 

proceedings had to be "terminated favorably for the plaintiff," before he could even consider 

filing suit in the matter. 

In Universal Underwriters, the administratrix of a motorcyclist's estate filed suit against 

insured automobile dealer ("Dan's Car World"), dealer's owner ("Dan Cava"), and the owner's 

son ("Salvator Cava"), arising out of an accident involving the son who was driving the insured's 

vehicle, and a motorcyclist who was fatally injured in the accident. The administratrix also 

sought declaratory judgment against insurer ("Zurich"). The insured, owner, and son filed cross 

claims against the insurer, asserting claims for bad faith and unfair trade practices based upon 

insurer's denial of coverage under the insurance policy and the defense of the owner and son. 

Salvator Cava, "asserted that he suffered and continued to suffer 'emotional and mental 

distress' some of which 'resulted in physical consequences' arising from the vehicle collision, 

the death of the motorcyclist, the police investigation, the allegations that the collision were his 

fault, 'as well as, the institution of this civil action. ", He further claimed his "emotional distress 

and mental anguish" continued to increase and "be compounded by the wrongful, reckless and 

intentional conduct" ofZurich. Id at 220. 

Zurich filed a petition for a writ of prohibition to prevent the circuit court from enforcing the 

order denying its motion to dismiss the claims asserted by the Cava defendants. Zurich claimed 

the ruling was clearly erroneous as a matter of law, as a judgment had not yet been entered 

against the Cava's, thus they had suffered no damages. The Court explained that, "the ripeness 

doctrine seeks to prevent the courts, through avoidance of premature adjUdication, from 

entangling themselves in abstract disagreements." (Underwriters, (quoting Paraquad v. St. 
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Louis Housing Auth., 259 F.3d 956, 958 (8th Cir. 2001)). Subject matter jurisdiction does not 

exist over claims that are not ripe for adjudication. "Questions that may never arise or are purely 

advisory or hypothetical do not establish a justiciable controversy. Because an unripe claim is 

not justiciable, the circuit court has no subject matter jurisdiction over it." (Underwriters, 

quoting Doe v. Golden & Walters, PLLC, 173 S.W.3d 260, 270 (Ky. Ct. App. 2005). The Court 

found that subject matter jurisdiction did not exist, as the claims were not ripe for adjudication. 

As "the issue of whether the Cava defendants will suffer any of their alleged economic damages 

is contingent on future events, the resolution of the plaintiffs claims against the Cava 

defendants, and her declaratory judgment action against Zurich... as these claims are pending 

before the circuit court, certain damages are not impending and the issue is not ripe for 

adjudication." Id. at 225. 

Analogous to Underwriters, Mr. Richards was unable to file suit with pending litigation 

ongoing, as his case was not ''ripe for adjudication." Id. Mr. Richards received notice of his 

driver's license revocation and the ability to appeal the order on or about June 16, 2012. 

(CompI. ~ 59; R.13). Upon receiving this notice, Richards retained Attorney Loren B. Howley, 

Esq. who had assisted him in his criminal action. (Compl.~ 64; R.l3). On June 22, 2012 

Richards sent a letter to the West Virginia Department of Motor Vehicles requesting a hearing to 

appeal the revocation. (CompI.~ 65; R.l3). The hearing was set for October 24, 2012.(Compl. ~ 

66;R.l4). Chief Walker was subpoenaed to appear at the Department of Motor Vehicles 

administrative hearing three times, and the hearing was ultimately postponed until May 20,2014. 

(Compi. ~ 68-82; R.14-15). On March 18, 2016, Robert L. DeLong, hearing examiner entered an 

Order reversing the Commissioner's Order of Revocation entered on June 12, 2012. (Compl.~ 

83;R.15). 
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As evidenced above, Mr. Richards was unable to file a suit while he had ongoing litigation 

with the Department of Motor Vehicles. This litigation was continued on multiple occasions due 

to Walker continuing to not show up for proceedings he had been subpoenaed to attend. 

Therefore, the Circuit Court erred in dismissing the Petitioner's complaint citing it was barred by 

the statute of limitations. As, there would not be subject matter jurisdiction over any claim filed

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