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

should have brought the action by January 19,2013. Plaintiff urges this Court to look to the date 
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of the resolution of the DMV proceeding in order to argue that his Complaint was timely filed. 

However, there is no authority under West Virginia law to bring a cause of action for malicious 

prosecution for actions arising out of a DMV hearing. Therefore the trial court properly used the 

date of the conclusion of the criminal proceeding. Additionally, Chief Walker was required by 

statute to file the DUI Information Sheet. Also, as a policy point, this Court should not permit 

Plaintiff to plead to a lesser offense on the criminal matter and then sue the arresting officer for 

malicious prosecution when the officer does not show up at the administrative hearing. 

Regardless of which date this Court uses to calculate the statute of limitations for 

Plaintiffs malicious prosecution claim, all of Plaintiff's other claims were barred by the statute 

of limitations. At the latest, all of the requisite elements of Plaintiffs claim for intentional 

infliction of emotional distress occurred when Chief Walker submitted information to the West 

Virginia DMV via a West Virginia DUI Infom1ation Sheet, on or about May 15, 2012. 

Additionally, Plaintiff's claims for Negligent Employment against Grantsville arose when he was 

originally arrested. Finally, the continuous tort doctrine is not applicable here and does not toll 

the statute of limitations. 

III. STANDARD FOR STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS 

The West Virginia Supreme Court of Appeals has recently articulated a five-step analysis 

to be applied to determine whether a cause of action is time-barred: 

"First, the court should identify the applicable statute of limitation for each cause 
of action; 

Second, the court (or, if questions of material fact exist, the jury) should identify 
when the requisite elements of the cause of action occurred; 

Third, the discovery rule should be applied to determine when the statute of 
limitations began to run by determining when the plaintiff knew, or by the 
exercise of reasonable diligence should have known, of the elements of a possible 
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cause of action, as set forth in Syllabus Point 4 of Gaither v. City Hosp., Inc., 199 
W. Va. 706,487 S.E.2d 901 (1997); 

Fourth, if the plaintiff is not entitled to the benefit of the discovery rule, then 
determine whether the defendant fraudulently concealed facts that prevented the 
plaintiff from discovering or pursuing the potential cause of action, the statute of 
limitation is tolled; 

And fifth, the court or the jury should determine if the statute of limitation was 
arrested by some other tolling doctrine. Only the first step is purely a question of 
law; the resolution of steps two through five will generally involve questions of 
material fact that will need to be resolved by the trier of fact." 

Syl. Pt. 5, Dunn v. Rockwell, 225 W. Va. 43, 689 S.E.2d 255 (2009) (emphasis added). 

Despite the Dunn Court's statement that "the resolution of steps two through five will 

generally involve questions of material fact that will need to be resolved by the trier of fact," the 

Court acknowledged that this is not always the case. The Dunn Court stated, "The remaining 

steps generally involve mixed questions of law and fact, and a trial court is required to analyze 

mixed questions of law and fact in order to determine 'whether there is ... [a] genuine issue of 

fact to be tried and inquiry concerning the facts is ... desirable to clarify the application of the 

law.'" Id at 53 and 265, citing Syl. Pt. 3, Aetna Cas. & Sur. Co. v. Federal Ins. Co. olN Y., 148 

W. Va. 160, 133 S.E.2d 770 (1963). In essence, the Dunn Court only clarified that courts are to 

analyze steps two through five under the same standard as an ordinary motion for summary 

judgment. If there are no genuine issues of material fact, then trial courts need not submit the 

issue to a jury and a motion for summary judgment, or a motion to dismiss, may be properly 

granted. 

IV. ARGUMENT 

A. 	 PETITIONER'S MALICIOUS PROSECUTION CLAIM WAS RIPE FOR 
ADJUDICATION AND THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY USED THE DATE 
OF THE RESOLUTION OF THE CRIMINAL PROCEEDING TO DETERMINE 
THAT PLAINTIFF'S CLAIM WAS BARRED BY THE STATUTE OF 
LIMITATIONS. 
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The trial court correctly dismissed Plaintiff s claim for malicious prosecution against 

Chief Walker because it found that it was barred by the statute of limitations. Plaintiff argues that 

the trial court erred because it should have used the date of the conclusion of the DMV 

administrative hearing instead of the date that Plaintiff pled to a lesser offense in the criminal 

proceeding. Plaintiff is wrong because (1) Chief Walker was required to submit the DUI 

information sheet to the DMV and the last action he took occurred on or about May 17,2012; (2) 

there is no authority under West Virginia law to permit Plaintiff to bring a malicious prosecution 

claim based on a DMV proceeding; (3) Plaintiff suffered no prejudice or harm by Chief Walker's 

actions; and (4) as a policy consideration, this Court should disfavor these sort of suits. 

Plaintiff should have brought his claim for malicious prosecution within one year of the 

resolution of the criminal prosecution. As a result of being arrested for DUI, Plaintiff ultimately 

pled no contest to the criminal conduct of reckless driving on January 19,2012. (lA. at 11, ~55). 

Plaintiff argues for the first time upon appeal that his claim was not ripe for adjudication until 

after the DMV found that there was lack of evidence to support a conviction of DUI, which 

occurred on March 18, 2016. 1 This appears to be a rehash of Plaintiff s argument that the statute 

of limitations did not begin to run until March 18, 2016. The trial court correctly used the 

January 19,2012 to determine when the statute oflimitations began to run. (J.A. at 192-193). 

a. 	 Chief Walker was required by regulation to submit a DID Information Sheet 
to the DMV. In fact, the last affirmative action Plaintiff alleges that was 
taken by Chief Walker occurred on or about on or about May 17,2012. 

Plaintiff should not be able to wait until the conclusion of the administrative proceeding 

in order to bring a claim for malicious prosecution against Chief Walker. Instead, Plaintiff should 

have brought any claim for malicious prosecution within one year of the no-contest plea to 

I Plaintiff did not argue either in his brief or during oral argument that the case was not ripe for adjudication. 
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reckless driving on January 19, 2012? The administrative proceeding was merely ancillary to the 

criminal proceeding. Chief Walker is being sued in this instance for actions which he was 

required by statute to discharge. Chief Walker was statutorily mandated to report the offense to 

the Commissioner of the Division of Motor Vehicles by written statement. Section 17C-5A-1 

states in relevant portion, 

Any law-enforcement officer investigating a person for an offense described in 
section two [§ 17C-5-2], article five of this chapter or for an offense described in 
a municipal ordinance which has the same elements as an offense described in 
said section shall report to the Commissioner of the Division of Motor Vehicles 
by written statement within forty-eight hours of the conclusion of the 
investigation the name and address of the person believed to have committed the 
offense. 

If Plaintiff had a claim for malicious prosecution arising from the criminal prosecution, that 

claim should have been made within one year of the conclusion of the criminal proceeding. In 

the instant case, the officer was statutorily mandated to report to the Commissioner of the 

Division of Motor Vehicles. Chief Walker took no further action other than what he was 

statutorily obligated to perform. In fact, according to Plaintiff, Chief Walker did not actively 

participate in the DMV proceeding. His last affirmative action was submitting the DUI 

Information Sheet on May 17, 2012. 

In order to maintain a cause of action for malicious prosecution of either a civil suit or a 

criminal charge, the Plaintiff must prove: 

(1) That the prosecution was malicious, 
(2) That it was without reasonable or probable cause, and 
(3) That it terminated favorably to plaintiff. 

Preiser v. MacQueen, 177 W. Va. 273, 274 (1985). Chief Walker was statutorily required to 

submit the DMV Information Sheet. This was his last affirmative action or participation in the 

2 Defendants contend that any claim for malicious prosecution arising out of the criminal proceeding is also barred 
because Plaintiff pled to reckless driving and therefore did not prevail. 
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DMV proceeding. Therefore, this Court should rule that because Chief Walker was carrying out 

a duty required by statute, his conduct could not have been with malice. Such a ruling would not 

wholly deprive a potential plaintiff from relief because if Plaintiff prevailed on the criminal side, 

he would arguably have a cause of action for malicious prosecution. However, here, Plaintiff did 

not prevail; rather, he pleaded no contest to reckless driving on January 19, 2012. (l.A. at 11, 

~55). 

b. 	 There is no authority under West Virginia law for Plaintiff to bring a 
malicious prosecution claim stemming from a Department of Motor Vehicle 
proceeding. Therefore, the trial court, in deciding the statute of limitations 
issue, used the date of the conclusion of the criminal proceeding. 

There is no authority under West Virginia law for a Plaintiff to bring a malicious 

prosecution claim arising out of a DMV administrative proceeding. While Plaintiff correctly 

asserts that West Virginia law recognizes malicious prosecution claims arising out of civil 

actions, there is no precedent for recognizing a malicious prosecution claim which arises out of 

DMV proceeding. Plaintiff cites two cases in an attempt to convince this Court that his claim 

should survive. First, Plaintiff cites Vorholt v. Vorholt, 111 W. Va. 196, 160 S.E. 916 (1931). 

This case appears to involve an instance where one individual caused a warrant to be issued on 

another individual before the "lunacy commission." The commission found the plaintiff not to be 

insane and discharged him. Id at 197. This case was decided approximately 86 years ago. It 

provides few details or legal analysis and is certainly not dispositive here. There is absolutely 

nothing in this case to suggest that there is a cause of action in West Virginia for a wrongful 

prosecution claim arising out of a DMV hearing where the officer did not appear at the hearings. 

Likewise, the other case cited by Plaintiff, Tornai-Minogue v. State Farm Mut. Auto. Inc. 

So., 770 F.2d 1228 (4th Cir. 1985), is a federal decision decided over 30 years ago which has 

absolutely nothing to do with West Virginia law; nor does it recognize a cause of action for 
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malicious prosecution arising out of either a DMV or administrative process. Instead, Tornai-

Minogue involves a case where the Plaintiff struck a vehicle owned by Richard Webster, who 

was insured by State Farm, the Defendant. Id at 1231. Plaintiff offered to pay for the damage 

and at Webster's request, wrote him a $100 check. Id Later, Webster filed a claim with State 

Farm and was paid $230.90, covering the cost of repairs less the $100 deductible under the 

policy.ld Following the accident, State Farm sought reimbursement from Plaintiff for Webster's 

damage claim and eventually obtained a default judgment against Tomai-Minogue for $230.90. 

State Farm forwarded its subrogation claim to its attorney for collection, who in tum filed suit in 

Maryland against Tomai-Minogue. Id Apparently, at this time, under Virginia'S Motor Vehicle 

Safety Responsibility Act, one could move to revoke or suspend the license of someone who 

owed unpaid financial obligations arising out of a motor vehicle accident. Tomai-Minogue 

retained counsel and successfully challenged the suspension of her license based upon personal 

jurisdiction.ld at 1232. Eventually Tomai-Minogue sued State Farm under a § 1983 claim, the 

state claim of malicious prosecution, and the state claim of abuse of process. Id at 1236-1237.3 

The Court confirmed the district court's decision dismissing both state law claims. Id at 1237

1238. The Tornai-Minogue case provided absolutely no guidance to the present suit. The Court 

specifically stated that it did not reach the issue as to whether a malicious prosecution claim 

could exist for the seizure of a license. Id at 1237. Instead, the Court affirmed the lower court's 

dismissal of the malicious prosecution claim because it was clear from the record that the 

Defendant had probable cause to pursue the revocation of Plaintiffs license. Id It is also worth 

noting that in the instant case, Chief Walker was statutorily required to file the DUI Information 

Sheet. 

3 The parties disagreed on whether Virginia or Maryland law would apply. The Fourth Circuit decided the case 
without deciding which state's law applied to the malicious prosecution and abuse of process allegations. 
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There is no authority in West Virginia to permit a cause of action for malicious 

prosecution arising out of a DMV proceeding. None of the cases cited by Plaintiff pertain, in any 

way, to a DMV proceeding in West Virginia. Neither case involved a suit for malicious 

prosecution against an officer who had filed a DUI Information Sheet, which he was statutorily 

obligated to do under West Virginia law. 

c. 	 Plaintiff suffered no prejudice as a result of the conduct of Chief Walker. 

Plaintiff was pulled over for an inoperable taillight. Then, according to Plaintiffs 

Complaint, he admitted to drinking three to four beers. Plaintiff does not dispute that multiple 

open beer cans were found inside his vehicle. As a result of the investigation Plaintiff was 

arrested and charged with driving under the influence. Plaintiff then pled to the lesser offense of 

reckless driving. Chief Walker only did what he was statutorily obligated to do, report the arrest 

to the Commissioner of the DMV. Then, according to Plaintiff, Chief Walker failed to show up 

for multiple hearings in front of the DMV which resulted in the hearing examiner finding that 

there was a lack of sufficient evidence to prove that Plaintiff was driving under the influence. 

Essentially, Plaintiff is suing Chief Walker, at least in part, for not diligently pursing the 

revocation of Plaintiffs drivers' license by failing to participate in the DMV administrative 

proceeding. According to Plaintiff, Chief Walker's last affirmative action was the filing of the 

DUI Information sheet which occurred in May of 2012. The elephant in the room is that had 

Chief Walker showed up at the DMV hearings and actively participated, it is likely that 

Plaintiff s license would have been revoked. 

d. 	 The law favors the stringent application of the statute of limitations when 
applied to malicious prosecutions claims. 

In the context of a malicious prosecution claim brought in a civil proceeding, the law 

favors the stringent application of the statute of limitations. In McCammon v. Oldaker, 205 W. 
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Va. 24 (1999), this Court answered a certified question regarding the application of the statute of 

limitations to a malicious prosecution: 

Whether, the applicable West Virginia statute of limitations bars claims for 
malicious prosecution and the tort of outrage where the jury verdict was entered 
in the underlying medical malpractice action more than 2 Y; years prior to suit but 
the final decision on appeal of the underlying action was entered within one year 
of the filing of this suit and the plaintiff s earlier action for malicious prosecution 
and tort of outrage had been brought and voluntarily dismissed the decision on 

appeal. 


Answer of the circuit court: No. 


Id. at 41. In that case, the Defendant Dr. McCammon prevailed in the underlying medical 

malpractice suit that was filed by Plaintiff McDougal. Id. at 42. The trial court judgment was 

entered on June 15, 1993. Id. The McDougals appealed the decision on January 28, 1994. Id. On 

May 2, 1994, Dr. McCammon sued the McDougals for malicious prosecution and the tort of 

outrage. On July 14, 1994, Dr. McCammon voluntarily dismissed her malicious prosecution 

without prejudice because the appeal in the medical malpractice action was still pending. Id. On 

February 17, 1995, the Supreme Court of Appeals of West Virginia affirmed the medical 

malpractice defense verdict in favor of Dr. McDougal. Id. On January 23, 1996, Dr. McCammon 

filed her action again alleging malicious prosecution and intentional infliction of emotional 

distress. Id. Apparently, Dr. McCammon reasoned that her suit was timely because it was filed 

within one year of the appeal and the circuit court agreed. However, this Court disagreed and 

ruled that the right to sue for malicious prosecution accrues upon the termination of the action 

complained of in the trial court and is barred by the statute of limitations if not asserted within 

one year after such termination, notwithstanding the pendency of an appeal. Id. at 46. 

The Court noted that the action for malicious prosecution "has been hedged about by 

limitations more stringent than those surrounding actions based on almost any other conduct

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